UND

University of North Dakota UND Scholarly Commons

UND Alumni Review

UND Publications

7-8-1953

July 1953

University of North Dakota Alumni Association

How does access to this work benefit you? Let us know!

Follow this and additional works at: https://commons.und.edu/und-alumni-review

Recommended Citation

University of North Dakota Alumni Association, "July 1953" (1953). UND Alumni Review. 235. https://commons.und.edu/und-alumni-review/235

This Book is brought to you for free and open access by the UND Publications at UND Scholarly Commons. It has been accepted for inclusion in UND Alumni Review by an authorized administrator of UND Scholarly Commons. For more information, please contact und.commons@library.und.edu.

The University of North Dakota

VOLUME XXX

Journalism Graduate Alumni Prominent

One of the University of North Dakota's most prominent journalism graduates is a nationally known colnmnist for the Chicago Sun-Times, Irving Kupcinet, 1934.

Globetrotting is Kup's trade, and people are his bread and



butter. He travels far and wide in search of stories and boasts an acquaint a n c e with a variety of prominent personalities. H i s office is lit-

erally papered with people.

Kup, who was born in 1912 on Chicago's west side, started in the newsgathering business as a writer for the Harrison high school newspaper. After high school, he went to Northwestern University where he worked on the Daily Northwestern. He transferred to the University of North Dakota and graduated with a B. A. degree in 1934. In 1935 he started writing for the sports department of the Chicago Times-copy reader, sportswriter and sports columnist.

Takes Up Football

When he transferred from Northwestern to North Dakota he decided to go in for football. In 1935, the year he graduated, he made the College All Stars. Not very long after that he married the team's "mascot", fire-topped Esther Solomon.

For a while it looked as if Kup the newshound was going to bow out in favor of Kup the grid star. He even played pro football for a year with the Philadelphia Eagles. Then he broke his shoulder playing football and decided to give up

(Continued on Page 3)

Lykken President

GRAND FORKS, N. DAK.-JULY 8, 1953

Henry Lykken of Minneapolis was elected president of the University Alumni Association at the organization meeting held during the June commencement exercises. He succeeds J. B. Bridston of Grand Forks.

Armin Rohde of Grand Forks was elected vice-president. Gordon Caldis was reelected to serve on the Athletic Board of Control and Paul Benson will serve on the Student Union Board of Directors.

The board voted to allocate \$20,000 to the athletic department for the purchase of artificial ice equipment. It was decided that a study should be made this year of the consitution and by-laws of the association.

Directors Named

At the Alumni Association annual meeting, the following directors were elected to serve on the board for three-year terms:

Dr. E. L. Grinnell and Mrs. Reinhold Jacobi of Grand Forks; George Soule of Fargo; Jack Stewart of Phoenix, Ariz.; and Lykken.

Four honorary life members were selected, including Bridston, Roy Holand, Franklin Lunding and Tom Campbell.

Mr. and Mrs. Fred Traynor, who now reside in St. Petersburg, Fla., arrived early for commencement and enjoyed a family reunion during the commencement activities this year. Their children and grandchildren were here to see Traynor celebrate the anniversary of the 50-year class and also receive an honorary doctor's degree.

Guests Listed

Other members of the class of 1903 who were present in-(Continued on Page Three)

Trace 60-Year History Of Alumni Association

U. H. D. PRESS

It may be interesting to our readers to look back over a period of more than 60 years and recall those who have given their time as officers and representatives of the University of North Dakota Alumni Association.

ALUMNI REVIEW

801 Enroll In Summer Session

Latest figures released by Registrar Ruby McKenzie show 801 students enrolled for the 1953 summer session. This total is approximately the same as last year although a few late graduate student registrations are expected to boost the final attendance figures.

Graduate students make up the largest group in the department breakdown with 461 enrolled to date. The 340 undergraduates are divided as follows: SLA 147, education 49, commerce 53, law 23, nursing 8, special and unclassified students 45.

Men outnumber women nearly 4-to-1 with enrollment figures showing totals of 626 to 175.

Included among the enrollees are many from outside North Dakota. Several instructors from other colleges and universities are signed up here for summer courses.

NOTICE

The Alumni Office is compiling a list of University men who have lost their lives in the Korean conflict. Please send names to Lloyd Stone, Alumni Office, University of North Dakota.

Many whose names are on the list are with us no more. Let us think of them with appreciation and gratitude for the parts they played in the development of our Alumni Association and Alma Mater. Alumni Presidents:

NUMBER 1

1889-93-C. A. DeGroat (de-ceased); 1893-94 — George F. Robertson (deceased); 1994-95 -C. F. Fiset (Oakland, Calif.); 1995-96-W. L. Cowper(de-ceased); 1896-97-Mattie Glass Massee (deceased); 1897-98-B. G. Skulason (Portland, Oregon; 1898-99 — Emma Crans (Washington, D. C.); 1899-00— Neva Bostevick Douglas (Los Angeles, Calif.); 1900-01-W. L. Nuessle (Bismarck, N. D.); 1901-02-G. Olgeirson (Bismarck, N. D.); 1902-03-P. D. Norton (Minot, N. D.); 1903-04-C. F. Fiset (Oakland, Calif.).

1904-06-B. G. Skulason (Portland, Oregon); 1906-12-Marcia Bisbee (deceased); 1912-21 — M. Beatrice John-stone (Grand Forks, N. D.); 1921-23 - Richard Wenzel (Chevy Case, Md); 1923-24-Henrietta Haagensen (deceased); 1924-26 - Walter Schlosser (Edmonton, Alberta); 1926-27 - M. B. Ruud (Grand Forks, N. D.); 1927-37 -Fred J. Traynor (St. Petersburg, Fla.); 1937-38-J. Earl McFadden (Grand Forks, N. D.); 1938-41 — Paul Griffith (Grand Forks, N. D.); 1941-44-O. B. Burtness (Grand Forks, N. D.); 1944-45-John Page (deceased); 1945-50-Dr. Ralph Leigh (Grand Forks, N. D.); 1950-53-Joseph B. Bridston (Grand Forks, N. D.); 1953- — Henry G. Lykken, (Minneapolis, Minn).

In 1899, the organization of the Alumni Association of the University of North Dakota, the adoption of the Constitution and By-laws and the election of officers were the items of business.

The Alumni dinner in 1893 (Continued on Page Two)

60 Year History

(Continued from Page One) per plate was \$1.00. This covered the cost of the floral decorations and the invitations. It was decided to present each faculty member with a picture of the class. At the alumni meeting in 1897 a committee was appointed to draw up resolutions on the death of George Brennan.

At the Alumni meeting in 1899 a committee was formed to ascertain the possibility of supplying a coach for the football team. At the 1900 annual meeting a report was read showing that the alumni had contributed \$106.50 to the football team.

The Alumni Association in 1902 decided to buy a wedding present for President Merrifield and established the office of orator. Mr. H. G. Vick was selected for that honor. The office of tosatmaster has been one of the earliest annual appointments.

In 1904 Mary Brennan was elected Alumni Editor. In 1906 Marcia Bisbee became president of the Alumni Association and remained in office six years. Until this time most presidents had held office but one year. It was moved by W. F. Lemke and seconded by O. B. Burtness that a committee be appointed to be known as the "Get After Jim Hill" committee for the purpose of getting funds for constructing a gymnasium. The committee was composed of W. F. Lemke, Thomas D. Campbell, P. D. Norton, H. A. Bronson, Victor Wardrope, B. G. Skulason, R. A. Nestes, Gudmunder Grimson, and W. L. Nuessle, According to the minutes at the next annual meeting, the Jim Hill committee reported no progress. There is no record of the committee's discharge.

In 1907, Mr. Nuessle, Mr. Norton, and Mr. John Anderson were thanked for their work in the legislature against the Purcell Bill. The association endorsed a letter from the executive committee urging President Merrifield not to resign. The motion to change the University's colors was lost, 75 votes: 39 against and 36 for.

In 1908 the minutes show that O. B. Burtness was appointed Alumni Representative on the Athletic Board of Control. A memorial was presented to President Merrifield by Marcia Bisbee, president, on behalf of the group.

In 1912, Beatrice Johnstone became president of the Alumni Association with H. G. Lykken as vice president. In 1913 H. G. Lykken was elected a director.

In 1922, the discussion centered around the need of a rousing song for games and contests and urging the classes to improve the Carney Contest. An effort was made to write an original football song.

In 1925, a motion was made for the Directors to launch a memorial campaign for men in the armed forces and for President Merrifield. The Association also decided to offer \$200 for evidence leading to the prosecution of the editors of "Harpoon" the anonymous publication. President Schlosser spoke briefly concerning the launching of the University Memorial Campaign, following which Paul L. Samuelson, director of the campaign, discussed the work and plans of the campaign.

In 1927 Frank J. Webb was elected General Secretary of the Alumni Association.

In 1928, the president appointed a committee to draw up resolutions of sympathy and condolence and send them to Mrs. Flanagan. The association authorized the secretary to use \$300 to finance the publishing of a directory. The president was authorized to wire each member of the Board of Administration expressing confidence in President Kane.

In 1930, President Traynor announced that the 1903 class had invited Vilhjalmur Stefansson to become a member of its class and award him an LL. D. The secretary was authorized to add his name to the class list.

In 1931, considerable interest was centered on the alumni clubs in Washintgon, D. C.; Pittsburgh; Cleveland; Milwaukee; and Fargo. J. Earl McFadden was re-elected as the alumni member on the Athletic Board of Control.

The financing of the alumni magazine was the main point of discussion in 1932. A motion carried to the effect that it should be handled through the Business Office. The matter of scholarships was dropped temporarily on account of economic conditions. A representative attendance and an optimistic trend was evidenced. In 1933, John C. West was being considered for the presidency of the University.

J. E. McFadden was reelected on the Athletic Board of Control in 1934. The Directors discussed the function of KFJM at some length, believing that improvement could be made by the faculty presenting papers from twelve to fifteen minutes in length.

In 1936, Secretary Webb reported on activities of alumni relations which were farreaching.

In 1937, Dean Olson spoke of the need of a Student Union on the campus; a committee of five appointed by President West resulted from this meeting.

In 1938, President McFadden outlined a campaign to reach first, 200 alumni for substantial contributions; second, to contact the clubs whereby an increase of approximately 2,000 memberships be received. This would put the association on solid footing. The motion was carried.

Mr. Burtness moved that the Association support the constitutional amendment establishing a State Board of Higher Education. The motion was seconded, but failed to carry 18 to 15.

The 1939 Alumni Representative on the Athletic Board of Control was Earl McFadden. Fred Traynor resigned and a vote of thanks was given for his 11 years of fine service to the Alumni Association.

In 1941, a motion was carried to have the Commencement period cut from three to two days.

In 1942, Lynn Stambaugh, National Commander of the American Legion, returned for Commencement. The banquet was outstanding. The establishment of the University of North Dakota's alumni military registration was reported by Secretary Webb.

A renewed effort to increase memberships to take care of the large deficit occurred in 1943. President West joined the meeting. Edmund Boe was put on the Athletic Board of Control.

In 1944, the secretary reported having taught 12 to 15 hours a week. Considerable time to registration of military men, 3,000 in number, collecting photographs; meetings disfith, chairman of the Debt committee, reported Newhouse Paper Company and Page had been paid in full. John Page discussed the School of Medicine. The result of this talk was a meeting of Dr. Tompkins and other representative alumni to work out plans to help the University of North Dakota medical program. Mr. Webb resigned as secretary due to heavy Veterans Administration work.

In 1945, Edmund Boe was placed on the Athletic Board of Control. Mr. Page reported that the enabling act for the Med Center will become a law July 1, 1946. The Board thanked Mr. Page for his effective work. Dr. Tompkins took the chair; moved and seconded a letter be sent to Governor Aandahl stating the Board of Directors of the Alumni Association recom mended John Page as a member of the Medical Center Advisory Council. The motion was carried.

In October, 1945, Lloyd Stone was elected director of Alumni Relations.

On January 23, 1946, the Board of Directors discussed (1) Plans for financing the Medical Center project: (2) the alumni files—3,500 correct addresses were being maintained; (3) the Student Union project. The Board agreed to launch a fund-raising campaign. (4) Alumni Advisory Committee. It was decided (Continued on Page Three)

Charles T. Evans, 1925, lives in Newtown, Pa. He is Middle Atlantic Sales Manager for Local Trademarks, Inc. He is married and has three children.

University of North Dakota

ALUMNI REVIEW

Office of Publication: University Station, Grand Forks, North Dakota

"Entered as second class matter at the postoffice at Grand Forks, N. D., under the act of August 24, 1912. Published by the University for alumni and former students of the University of North Dakota in the interests of the University, monthly ten times a year except July and August."

President	Henry Lykken
Vice-President	Armin Rohde
Secretary	J. Lloyd Stone
Treasurer	E. W. Olson
Ath. Bd. of Contr	olGordon Caldis

Board of Directors

To 1954—Chester Fritz, John A. Hutcheson, Mrs. Helen McClure, Armin Rohde, Loyde C. Thompson.

To 1955—Durward E. Balch, Daniel F. Bull, Mrs. Milton Kelly, George Longmire, Edward J. O'Connor.

To 1956—Dr. E. L. Grinnell, Mrs. Reinhold Jacobi, Henry Lykken, George Soule, Jack Stewart.

60 Year History

(Continued from Page Two) that alumni should be appointed for the purpose of assisting with the University's legislative program.

On March 26, 1946, the Alumni Board met and agreed that the following projects required attention: (1) Medical Center, (2) Gymnasium-fieldhouse, (3) Student Union, (4) dormitories, (5) Faculty salaries, (6) The University Development Fund was established.

At the June, 1946 meeting a report was given on several new projects: (1) \$5,833 had been raised by the University Development Fund. (2) Legislation for two new dormitories had been drawn. (3) The Student Union project was activated and a plan for raising money was thoroughly dis-cussed. (4) A one-mill levy constitutional amendment to finance the state Medical Center at the University was proposed by J. B. Bridston. (5) Public relations directors were established in each legislative district to assist the University with its legislative program. (6) Additional appropriations for a Medical School was outlined. (7) A proposal for a new gymnasium-fieldhouse was discussed.

At the June, 1947 meeting it was reported that the University Development Fund contributions amounted to \$35,016. A report was given on activities which had been carried on at the last session of the legislature. Funds were appropriated for a gymnasium and for a science building. Legislation had been enacted making possible two new dormitories and the Student Union building. The one-mill levy for the Medical Center passed. A program to acquaint the voters of the state with the necessity of this constitutional amendment was discussed and a committee appointed. The public relations directors in each legislative district had been very active in the January session of the legislature. The alumni list of addresses had grown from 3,000 to 8,000 in the past year.

The University Development Fund had raised \$70,000 in 1948. Further discussion of the one-mill levy bill to support the Medical Center was discussed and committee reports given. Alumni records had grown from 8,000 to 11,-500. A report was given on the work of the public relations directors and plans for the coming year were outlined. There was discussion on the necessity for additional funds for building the gymnasiumfieldhouse. Plans for campus paving were discussed and also the need for a new engineering building.

In 1949, the Development Fund had raised \$38,700. The public relations directors and continued to do fine work for the University in their legislative districts. At the June meeting there was a discussion on the results of legislative action. Additional funds were given for the completion of the gymnasium-fieldhouse. money was appropriated for campus paving and the engineering building. The voters of the state approved a onemill levy activating the Medical Center by a vote of 108,-033 to 86,262. There was a discussion on the Student Union project. Advertisements for bids had been made and were to be opened in June. Work on the Student Union building was to commence in July, 1949. Twelve thousand alumni were receiving the REVIEW.

The Development Fund received \$41,00 in contributions in 1950. The University Alumni Advisory Committee members were continuing to do an outstanding job for the University. The Student Union building was under construction. The money was on hand for completing the building and for furnishing it. There was a discussion on the legislative program which included the rebuilding of Woodworth Hall which had been destroyed by fire, an addition to the Medical School building and an administration building. First Camelback Inn reunion was held in Phoenix. Ariz.

In 1951 the University Development Fund contributions totalled \$52,695. The mailing list had grown to 14,000. Alumni Advisory Committee members were continuing to do outstanding work for the University. The legislature had appropriated \$480,000 for a new education building. Salaries of University professors were becoming more adequate and compared favorably with those of universities of other mid-western states.

(Continued on Page Four)

Lykken

(Continued from Page One) cluded: John Hancock, New York; Charles Ego, Lisbon; Thomas Campbell, Albuquerque, N. M.; John McIntosh, Grand Forks; Mrs. R. E. Warner (Anna Larsen) Seattle; Miss Alice Hanson, Minneapolis; Mrs. G. L. Elken (Agnes Skundberg). Messages from Mary Brennan Clapp and Vilhjalmur Stefansson were read.

Rev. Rolla Currie of the class of 1893, now residing in Washington, D. C., celebrated his sixtieth class anniversary. Mr. and Mrs. Edgar Gustafson, 1915 (Maude Stevens, 1919) came from Shaker Heights, Ohio, to attend commencement. Gustafson is a retired vice president of Ohio Bell Telephone.

Come from Maryland

Mrs. Louise Page Gillett, of the class of 1925, and her husband, Charles, a Cornell graduate, came from Chevy Chase, Md., for Tom's graduation. Louise is a past president of the Washington alumni club.

Other out-of-town visitors during commencement were B. P. Sandlie, 1908, of Malta, Mont., Raymond Richards, 1906, Tulsa, Okla., Duane Traynor, 1934, Springfield, Ill.; Mrs. Bertha Jacobson Vincent, 1918, Rockford, Ill.; John Klemer, 1952, Casper, Wyo.; Mr. and Mrs. William Schrier, faculty 1927-39, Holland, Mich.; Mr. and Mrs. Dennis McGinn, 1928, Escanaba, Mich.; Mrs. Anna McGlinch Howard, 1901, Portland, Ore.

Others Attend

Ruth Hancock Hunger, 1927, Scarsdale, N. Y.; Mr. and Mrs. L. C. Bergquist, 1928, New York City; Alice Russell Fyten, 1951, Bremerton, Wash.; Mrs. Allan Hollingshead (Patricia Berge) 1948, Sinclair, Wyo.; Dr. and Mrs. O. Myking Mehus, 1920, of Kansas City, Mo.; Dr. Gordon Abbott, 1927, Kirkwood, Mo.; Mr. and Mrs. William Kunkel, 1936, (Marcella McGinn, 1938), Carrington.

Dr. Johanna Kildahl, 1898, Maza; Judge Luther Birdzell, faculty, 1905, Palo Alto, Calif.; Robert Birdzell, 1927, Bismarck; Mr. and Mrs. Arnold Klick, 1928, Hebron; E. K. Read, 1913, Pittsburgh; Mrs. A. B. Heian (Ellen Gunderson) 1928, Chippewa Falls, Wis.

(Continued on Page Four)

Kupcinet

(Continued from Page One) the game. He went back to journalism.

Writing Hard Work

His sports column for the Chicago Times, now the Chicago Sun-Times, was a hit and when the paper decided to install a column of general news and gossip, Kup was picked for the job. He has been at it ever since.

The life of a columnist is no picnic. Kup spends 15 hours a day, seven days a week, on his column. He usually works from 10 a.m. until two or three in the morning. Still, column writing is not all work. Kup's local beat is the night club circuit and he often takes his wife with him on his nightly rounds.

Meets Top People

Kup is one of the highest paid columnists in the nation. But the job has other attractions. It's Kup's pass to see the world and his letter of introduction to the world's interesting people. Kup says his most memorable experiences were his audience with the Pope, his two trips to Israel and just recently, his trip to Great Britain for the coronation of Queen Elizabeth II.

And Kup is proud, too, of his long-standing friendship with ex-president Harry Truman and Presidential Candidate Adlai Stevenson.

Kup constantly refuses dinner dates in order to spend that time with his family, daughter Bobbie Lynn (Cookie) and son, Jerry. After dinner he hurries to his nightly television show, "Kup's Column on TV" on which he has recently interviewed Mrs. Eleanor Roosevelt, Senator Paul Douglas and John Foster Dulles. When he isn't working the chances are he's sleeping or answering any of the eight phones in his lavish North Side apartment. However, Kup does get away from Chicago each summer for three weeks. During that time he does nothing but sleep and play golf.

Works on Promotions

He needs the relaxation for the moment he gets back in town, committee members of the Jerome Solomon Memorial Research Foundation, the Off-The-Street-Club, the Chicago Boys Clubs, the Hektoen Institute, etc., are axious to work on some new phase of their constant struggles.

Rovelstad Completes 50 Years of Teaching

Dr. A. M. Rovelstad, head of the University's department of Classical Languages, this year completed his fiftieth year of teaching, the last 23 of which have been at U. N. D.

Dr. Rovelstad was born in Elgin, Ill. He received the A. B. degree from St. Olaf in 1903; the degrees of A.M. and Ph.D. from the University of Michigan in 1906 and 1921, respectively. He was principal of the high school in Glenwood. Minn. 1903-1905.

wood, Minn., 1903-1905. At Luther College he was head of the Greek deaprtment, 1907-1910, and the Latin department, 1910-27. At St. Olaf College he was head of the Latin department, 1927-30.

He came to the University of North Dakota in 1930 and was professor of Latin, 1930-45. Since 1945 he has been head of the Department of Classical Languages to the present time.

At the University of Michigan Dr. Rovelstad held three classical fellowships at different times and was elected to the Quadrangle Club, an honorary scholastic group composed of faculty members and advanced students. He has made two trips to Europe, one of them in company with a group of classical instructors for the study of Greek and Roman archaeology in Mediterranean countries.

Dr. Rovelstad has been a member of many national and regional classical associations. Since 1908 he has been a member of the Classical Association of the Middle West and South and has appeared on its programs and served on its executive committee. Since 1931 he has served this organization as chairman for North Dakota until the present. During this period he has taken an active interest in the annual selection of officers and programs for the Latin Section of the N.D.E.A. He has annually sent newsletters to the Latin teachers in the state and has written articles for classical and other periodicals.

He is an Associate in the Hazen Foundation of New Haven, Conn., and is a member of the United Lutheran church in Grand Forks. He was the first faculty adviser selected



DR. A. M. ROVELSTAD

for the Lutheran Student Association at this University. He is a member of the Fortnightly Club and the Franklin Club in Grand Forks and was at one time a member of the Kiwanis Club.

Dr. Rovelstad is listed in Who's Who in America, Who's Who in the Midwest, Who Knows—and What and in the Directory of American Scholars.

In 1908 he was married to Miss Blanche Wollan, of Glenwood, Minn. They have three children—Helen of San Diego, Calif.; Robert W. of Noonan, N. D.; and Dr. Homer D. of Grand Forks.

Raymond D. Richards, 1906, of Tulsa, Okla., represented the University of North Dakota at the inauguration of Dr. Oliver S. Willham as President of Oklahoma Agricultural and Mechanical College in Stillwater and the dedication of their new library May 8 and 9.

Hollis B. Hoff, 1939, is program director and director of special events for Radio Station KCOL in Fort Collins, Col.

Dr. Emmett R. Fairall, 1929, is on the staff of the Veterans Hospital at Denver, Col.

• 60 Year History

(Continued from Page Three) In June, 1952, it was reported that 15,500 alumni are now on the mailing list. \$53,827 had been raised by the University Development Fund. It was agreed that alumni legislative representatives should meet in the fall and should continue their outstanding work on behalf of the University. There was a discussion on the importance of increasing faculty salaries still further and reports concerning the J. F. T. O'Connor scholarship fund. Need for a new administration building was discussed.

During 1953, the campaign continued to match the O'Connor scholarship fund. A report on plans for the Development Fund campaign for the coming year was completed. Contributions for the past year amounted to \$49,586.10. The need for an administration building and auditorium were discussed. Work started on the new education building in June, 1953. \$20,000 was allocated to the Athletic Department for building an artificial ice rink for hockey.

NOTICE

UND Homecoming—October 9 and 10. Camelback Inn Reunions— December 10-11-12; January 8-9-10. Write Jack Stewart, Camelback Inn, Phoenix, Arizona for reservations.

Dr. Abram M. Silvers, 1933, is a physician and surgeon in Elmhurst, N. Y. He is married and has two children.

Mrs. D. J. Boccella (Mary Alice Dooley) 1948, has been living in Las Cruces, N. M. She expects to join her husband in Germany this summer.

Carl E. Hedman, 1939, is a civil engineer with the U. S. government, stationted a Stewart Field, N. Y.

Guy R. McKay, 1909, is employed as assistant city engineer in Provo, Utah.

John J. Vossler, ex 1926, is with the wholesale division of Mid-Continent Petroleum Company in Sioux Falls, S. D.

Lykken

(Continued from Page Three) The Emerado community sponsored a banquet honoring John Hancock Sunday evening, June 7, in the Emerado community hall. A pageant showing the life of Hancock was given. Speakers were Richard King, Lloyd Stone and Hancock.

At the smorgasbord Monday evening in the Student Union building, more than 350 alumni and friends gathered to renew acquaintances. The "old timers" met in the south dining room and the "young timers"—from the class of 1928 to 1953—met in the north meeting rooms.

Dr. Grinnell, 1928, was toastmaster for the younger group and Stone served as toastmaster for the old timers.

Following the smorgasbord, the group met in the Student Union ballroom and listened to a panel discussion on "The University's Contribution to the Development of North Dakota's Resources." Panel members were Bruce Johnson, 1934, of the Bureau of Reclamation, Bismarck; Hancock, 1903, of New York; Dr. William Koenker, head of the Economics Department at the University; and Dr. Wilson Laird, State Geologist.

At the Old Timer's breakfast Tuesday morning, Tom C a m p b e l 1 of Albuquerque served as master of ceremonies and talks were given by visiting alumni including Rev. Rolla Currie, 1893; Fred Traynor, 1903; John Hancock, 1903; B. P. Sandlie, 1908; Miss Beatrice Johnstone, the Sweetheart of the Alumni; Judge Luther Birdzell of Palo Alto, Calif.; Dr. O. Myking Mehus, 1920; Edgar Gustafson, 1915; Charles Ego, 1903; Duane Traynor, 1934; and others.

Following the commencement program, the alumni again gathered in the Student Union for a luncheon. Everyone agreed that it was a successful commencement season and, in the words of Hancock, those who returned for commencement "had their batteries recharged for the coming year."